
BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING 
August 26, 2010 6:30PM 

 

Page 1 of 9                                                                         

Quorum noted 
 
6:30 PM:  Meeting called to order by Chairman Fernald. 
 
Roll Call:   All present. 
 
Pledge of Allegiance recited 
 
Moment of Silence observed 
 
Approval of Minutes of Previous Meeting(s) 
 
6:31 PM Motion by Mr. Moynahan, seconded by Ms. Place, to approve the minutes of July 

22, 2010, as amended. 
   VOTE 
    4-0 
    Chair concurs 

 
Mr. Murphy suggested the Board could reconsider their motion to approve the 
minutes and to improve and correct the blank spaces in this is terribly important. 
He asked how they would be corrected later on and if anyone has the answers to 
fill in these blank spaces…which he noticed, he has a copy, has read through it 
and he was amazed at some of the blank spaces and wondered why they were 
blank. Mr. Murphy suggested that someone, here, move to reconsider the 
approval of the minutes and do it. 
 
Mr. Fernald asked if any Board  member wanted to reconsider. 
 
Mr. Moynahan  moved, second by Ms. O’Donoghue, to reconsider the motion to 
approve the minutes. 

   VOTE 
    4-0 
    Chair concurs 

The Board reviewed the minutes in more detail and made additional changes. 
 

 Motion by Mr. Moynahan, seconded by Ms. O’Donoghue, to approve the minutes 
of July 22, 2010, as amended. 

   VOTE 
    4-0 
    Chair concurs 

The recording secretary thanked the Board. 
 

6:35 PM Mr. Blanchette said that the Board had in front of them a letter from Mr. Stan 
Smith, who is present tonight, and he thought they should expedite the process for 
him since it appears he needs to go to the BOA rather than to the BOS. He added 
that they only found this out within the last couple of days.  Mr. Fernald 
confirmed that this was not something they could do anything about until it goes 
back to the BOA. He said that it needed to go through the proper channels. 
 
Mr. Blanchette pointed out to Mr. Smith that he was right on the edge of the 
difference between a variance and a waiver. He explained that a waiver could be 
granted by the BOA up to 50%, which would be down to 15 feet from 30 feet, 
which is the setback requirement. He added that a variance was anything greater 
than 50% but that meets a higher threshold to qualify. Mr. Blanchette said that he 
didn’t know how accurate that bank person was with that 14 feet and whether it 
would be worthwhile to hire someone to measure that. He added that he thought it 
would make a big difference to the BOA as to whether it was a request for waiver 
or variance. He gave Mr. Smith some paperwork that explained the difference 
between a waiver and a variance. 
 



BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING 
August 26, 2010 6:30PM 

 

Page 2 of 9                                                                         

Mr. Moynahan agreed that the Appeals Board would be the first avenue and, if 
there is no relief at that level, then the Board could look at that and consider 
granting some kind of relief. 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue asked if the property had been surveyed. 
 
Mr. Smith said that he did not have it surveyed but said that he doesn’t know what 
the surveyor  box meant, whether that meant it was surveyed or not nor whether 
their measurements were accurate. 
 
Mr. Moynahan pointed out that, at the bottom of the page it states it is not a 
boundary survey. 
 
Mr. Smith clarified his handwritten note on his letter, saying that his daughter was 
at the window and said to him that the distance was way more than 14 feet, and 
said that he went out to measure it and it is exactly 22 feet from the garage to the 
road and he was thinking that this is what the gentleman, who owned the house 
before they did, made the error. He added that, when they bought it, the title went 
through fine – it never got caught. 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue agreed that going to the BOA would be the way to go and it 
looked to her that a waiver would be adequate. 
 
Mr. Smith thanked the Board for their help. 
 
Discussing the tax rate, Mr. Blanchette said that the tax rate has been set and it is 
$12.13, up from $12 last year. 
 
Mr. Fernald commented that it went up .13 cents and asked for a break down. 
 
Mr. Blanchette said that the tax rate for municipal was 5 cents, county was four 
cents and school was four cents. 
 

Public Comment: 
 
There was no public comment tonight. 

 
Department Head/Committee Reports 

 
  
6:41PM Mr. Murphy, Sewer Committee, passed out a document from the Sewer 

Committee to the Board that responded to the CLD Consulting Engineers and 
wording in the second paragraph the Sewer Committee recommended the Board 
should forward to CLD.  

 
Ms. O’Donoghue commented that there was some discussion last year that Eliot 
might be reaching its 200,000 gallon capacity and didn’t have much more room to 
add users and she wondered if that was accurate. 
 
Mr. Murphy clarified that, in day-to-day practice, Eliot is somewhat protected 
because the last 40,000 of the 200,000 allotment has been reserved for the assisted 
living development and that was not going forward. He explained that they don’t 
want to lose that because it is part of their value but he believed that, if the Town 
truly needed that to stay under the 200,000 per day, operationally, then the Town 
might be able to make some arrangement that assisted living would be promised 
to get it whenever they needed it. 
 
Mr. Moynahan asked for clarification of…”understand that the corridor or 
basin…if a full build-out is considered but, at this time, consideration of a full 
build-out is not warranted.” 
 



BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING 
August 26, 2010 6:30PM 

 

Page 3 of 9                                                                         

Mr. Murphy asked why they should build now for 20-25 years from now when 
things may be very much different and the system built now would probably need 
readjustment by then in improvement and repair. He said that to design and build 
and size everything for the amount of flow that would necessary in the far future 
isn’t good practice at the present time. He added that they just wanted to clarify 
that so that the engineers could be very specific in their numbers for the proposed 
design now. 
 
Mr. Moynahan questioned that, if they were to ever continue that sewer system 
and offer sewer throughout the Town in other areas, then they would be limited to 
that 200,000 gallon design. 
 
Mr. Murphy said that they would probably drop in another line along side the 
existing line or upgrade to a bigger force main, if needed, but there would need to 
be justification for it and an allocation of funds. He added that it would be very 
expensive to do that now. 
 
Mr. Moynahan clarified that his question was that it would be that much more 
cost-prohibitive to size a system large enough to add on for a potential future they 
may not even see. 
 
Mr. Murphy said that one should size the system for the expected flow and that is 
one of the problems they’ve had with Eliot Commons in that they had been 
expecting a much bigger flow so they put too big a pipe out on Bolt Hill. He 
added that, if they had kept a smaller pipe, then there would not have been the 
slowness in the sewage getting around in the system, which causes it to sit in there 
and ferment and that causes the H2S production so a great part of the odor 
production is very likely because they were looking to the future and getting 
something big enough to take care of that golf course, which never materialized. 
 

6:48 PM By a consensus of the Board, it was agreed that a letter would be sent to CLD 
incorporating the second paragraph from the letter by the Sewer Committee and 
signed by Chairman Fernald on behalf of the Board. 
 

Old Business (Action List): 
 

6:49 PM  
A. Job Review Form for Department Heads – Moynahan 

 
Mr. Moynahan said that the Eliot file had finally been located and that this would 
be available at the next regular meeting. 
 
B. Fire Arms Ordinance – Fernald 

 
Mr. Fernald said that a Firearms Ordinance was being set up for August 30 here at 
the Town Hall at 5 P M to discuss changes to that ordinance. He added that 
anyone who is interested is welcome to come. 
 
C. Consent Agreement Policy – Moynahan, Place & Murphy 

 
Mr. Fernald said that the Board received a nice big packet with a lot of 
information, guidelines, etc. and he hoped everyone had had a chance to read it 
over. 
 
Mr. Murphy commented that it wasn’t perfect and noted a typo on page three that 
should read “[See Case 5, Appendix B]” under A) at the top of that page. He said 
that he deliberately put information at the front so the Board would get general 
information and gain ideas before going to page three, which they were 
suggesting could be adopted as the full policy. He added that there were example 
consent agreements from cases finished and state law incorporated in to this, as 
well. 
 



BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING 
August 26, 2010 6:30PM 

 

Page 4 of 9                                                                         

Ms. O’Donoghue commented that she believes page three has it all there for them, 
step by step by step, and it is very clear written. She added that she thought this 
would provide consistency for the Town Boards in the future. 
 
After brief discussion, it was determined that this would be brought to the next 
meeting for the “first reading”. 
 
Mr. Fernald suggested that the Board members read this package again and get in 
to the details and be ready to present questions at the next regular meeting. 
 
D. Solid Waste Alternatives – Solid Waste Committee  
 
Ongoing. 
 
E. Wild Brook Lane 

 
Mr. Blanchette said that Shari Davis called to let him know she would not be 
ready for tonight’s meeting. 
 
F. Representation on Kittery Sewer 

 
Mr. Blanchette clarified that their (Sewer Committee) objective was to get more 
representation and  
 
G. Sewer Contract Committee – Moynahan, O’Donoghue, Murphy, Marchese & 
Blanchette 
 
Mr. Blanchette said that they are trying to put together a meeting. 
 
H. Skate Board Park noise – McPherson & Fernald 
 
Ongoing. 
 
Mr. Fernald asked if there was anything that needed to be added to the Action 
Item List. 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue asked if they had anything about the criteria for license review. 
 
Mr. Blanchette said that that is already under the “first reading”. 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue clarified that that was the first draft on the agenda that Mr. 
Blanchette had discussed. 
 

New Business (Correspondence List): 
 

A. Wildbrook Lane – postponed 
 
B. Open Space Committee 

 
6:51 PM Jennifer Fox, representing the Open Space Committee and a member, explained 

that this was a subcommittee of the Eliot Conservation Commission (ECC) and 
tonight they wanted to update the Board on work completed by the committee. 
She said that, with help from a grant from the Piscataqua Regional Estuary 
Project, assistance from SMRPC and a dedicated committee who worked through 
this past year with monthly meetings and more. She added that, with at least 10 in 
attendance at each meeting, they have produced an open space plan for Eliot. She 
highlighted their work using the information packet she gave to the Board 
members. She discussed the importance of conserving open space and rural 
character to Eliot residents, the key element in the Eliot Comprehensive Plan 
(ECP), which was “to prioritize those areas in Eliot that contain critical natural 
resource values of state-wide and regional significance but also build in the local 
assets which were crucial to the Townspeople, as a whole.” She added that the 



BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING 
August 26, 2010 6:30PM 

 

Page 5 of 9                                                                         

entire plan is available at the SMRPC website. She discussed the definition of 
open space, the types of data they used to form the plan, which included habitat 
data, regional data and local knowledge and important values, surveys in the local 
community during various public days (festival days, polling days, etc.), then 
worked to prioritize areas in the Town. She said that this effort resulted in focus 
areas developed in the maps that the Board would see on the following pages. Ms. 
Fox pointed out that these areas have come to be considered important focus areas 
based on the data that was reviewed and the public input that was presented. She 
said that they think it is important for the Town to know, whether it is the BOS or 
the Town in general, that these areas are considered to be valued for their open 
space characteristics and what they would like is that people consider these areas 
in the future in that, if the opportunity arises for these areas to be conserved, that 
they be taken into consideration. She added that on page three the focus areas that 
rose to the top were highlighted, with York Pond at the top of that list. She 
discussed the Working Farmland Map, noting that the plan  is in draft form and 
some things will most likely change, such as this map, to Farmland over 10 Acres 
because of its important value to Eliot residents – so, as well as having specific 
focus areas they also highlighted areas of farmland over 10 acres important for 
Eliot. She reiterated that, if these areas presented themselves for preservation, 
these are the highlighted areas they would like taken into consideration. Ms. Fox 
said that the SMRPC was very familiar with the ECP so they helped the 
committee dovetail an implementation plan that carries out the goals of the ECP. 
She explained that what the Board was seeing next was a matrix of the 
implementation plan  that the Open Space Committee (OSC) developed. She 
explained that they have developed six goals and a number of strategies, of which 
the first two strategies relate to the Board. Ms. Fox said that, first, they wanted to 
formally request and seek approval from the BOS of the Open Space Plan, 
highlighting that it carries out what the ECP made as strong recommendations. 
She added that, secondly, they would like to request the BOS approve that the 
Open Space Action Committee, charged with implementing these 
recommendations, continue as a subcommittee of the ECC. Ms. Fox said that they 
put out, at the last polling day, sign-up sheets for work committees that could 
work on the different strategies during the coming year and they got 20-30 people 
who were interested, as well as the current standing committee. 

 
7:05 PM Mr. Fernald asked for comments from the Board. 

 
The Board expressed how appreciative of the work and effort that was done by 
this committee they were. 
 
Ms. Fournier asked when it was that they met. 
 
Ms. Fox said that they had been meeting the third Wednesday of every month but 
are shifting gears. She encouraged her to leave her name as they would be having 
smaller work committees working on their own schedule and reporting quarterly 
to the ECC. 
 
Ms. Weeks added that the ECC meets on the first Wednesday at the Town Hall at 
7 PM so, if anyone would like to stop by and put their name in, if that is what they 
wished. 
 
Ms. Fox said that they were hoping to have a kick-off meeting to get the work 
groups going some time in September. 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue moved, second by Mr. Moynahan, that the Board of Selectmen 
thank the Open Space Committee for their excellent work, approve the 
continuation of the Open Space Committee as a subcommittee of the Eliot 
Conservation Commission and express their approval of the plan. 

VOTE 
    4-0 
    Chair concurs 



BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING 
August 26, 2010 6:30PM 

 

Page 6 of 9                                                                         

Ms. Jacques asked if it would be appropriate, while some of the committee 
members who have worked so long are present, for them to be introduced. 
 
Ms. Fox introduced Connie Weeks (long-standing member of the ECC), Glen 
Crilley (Acting Chair for the ECC) and Al Libby, who was very helpful in the 
mapping and the prioritization matrix. 
 
Mr. Crilley commented that a lot of the committees are people who are already in 
committees but, with people like Mr. Libby, there are some residents who have no 
other commitment except to this and it is nice to see fresh blood, so-to-speak, to 
come out and join these committees and help because more hands make lighter 
work. 
 

7:10 PM C. PACE Program 
 
Mr. Blanchette said that the representative from the State could not make it this 
evening and hopes to be here for the next regular meeting. 
 
Mr. Fernald recommended that all Board members be familiar with this program 
for the next meeting. 

 
7:11 PM 
#1 TO : Board of Selectmen 
 FROM : Mary & David Fournier 
 REF : Public Safety Ordinance 

 
Ms. Fournier said that they were here tonight to present amendments to the Public 
Safety Ordinance regarding medical marijuana dispensaries. She added that, after 
thinking about and reviewing it, they were requesting eight additional 
amendments to further restrict these dispensaries. 
 
Mr. Fernald explained that the Planning Board (PB) is reviewing this ordinance, 
themselves, and his suggestion to the Board would be to pass this information on 
to the PB so they could review it and incorporate any ideas that seem appropriate. 
 
There was discussion of whether it was appropriate to pass this on to the PB or 
keep it within the BOS and it being a safety issue versus a zoning issue. 
 
Dana Boyer commented that they attended the last PB meeting and the PB said 
that it would be better for the BOS modify their ordinance rather than them doing 
this as a land use ordinance. 
 
Mr. Murphy commented that he had prepared a response to the Fournier’s letter 
and gave his recommendations to the BOS. 
 

7:15 PM Mr. Fernald said that the Board needed to know if the PB was actually working on 
this ordinance before this Board could move forward with this. 

 
Mr. Moynahan said that, if the PB was going to do a land use ordinance on this 
that would either qualify or not qualify a company coming in for this, then if their 
work allows a company to come they would still need this so maybe the Board 
should keep this until the PB finishes their work and, perhaps, this may not be 
needed once their work is done. 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue clarified that she doesn’t think it would be needed in that sense 
but they don’t know what might happen 10 years down the line to safeguard Eliot 
on the books. She said that she feels strongly that this is more of a safety issue 
than a land use issue. 
Ms. Place said that she thinks they originally went in to this land use ordinance 
with the idea that it would be changed so maybe it should stay with the Board 
until they hear from the PB. 
 



BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING 
August 26, 2010 6:30PM 

 

Page 7 of 9                                                                         

It was the consensus of the Board to keep these recommendations with the Board 
for the time being and, when they are finished with their work, this Board would 
decide whether to move forward with this. 
 

7:18 PM 
#2 TO : Board of Selectmen 
 FROM :  
 REF : Draft (Use of Equipment and Vehicles) 

 
Mr. Fernald said that the Board had requested that this draft be sent to all 
department heads. He added that he understood that the Fire Chief would like to 
speak on this again but could not be here tonight. He said that because they asked 
for input from all department heads they should probably wait on this. 
 
The Board agreed. 
 
Mr. Fernald asked that this be put on the next meeting’s agenda. 
 
Mr. Blanchette asked if the Board wanted that as the second reading. 
 
Mr. Fernald said yes. 
 
Mr. Moynahan asked if any other department heads had commented on this draft. 
 
Mr. Blanchette said that he had not heard from anyone else. As directed by the 
Board, Mr. Blanchette will send out a reminder memo to all department heads for 
their comments on this draft. 

 
#3 TO : Board of Selectmen 
 FROM : Department of Labor 
 REF : Safety and Health Inspection 

 
Mr. Fernald read the letter that said that, in reference to the Safety and Health 
inspection done and a report from the SafetyWorks! Consultant, all items had 
been corrected and no further penalty monies were due. He said that that was one 
more thing out of the way for the Town. 
. 

7:20 PM 
#4 TO : Board of Selectmen 
 FROM : Grant Hirst 
 REF : Maine Department of Labor 
 

Mr. Fernald said that this letter was from Mr. Hirst indicating that they are now 
officially in compliance and need to be aware that they would be reinspected. He 
added that the Fire Chief would also like to speak on this and the Board would 
like the Fire Chief to have the opportunity to hear what Mr. Hirst has to say about 
this, as well. 
 
The Board agreed and this will be put on the agenda for the next meeting. 
 

#5 TO : Board of Selectmen 
FROM : Grant Hirst 
REF : Copy of letter from Robert Bohlmann – NIMS compliancy 
 
Mr. Fernald asked Mr. Blanchette to address this. 
 
Mr. Blanchette said that this is another issue that the Fire Chief would like to 
discuss. 
 
The Board agreed to put this aside until the next meeting. 
 

7:23PM 



BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING 
August 26, 2010 6:30PM 

 

Page 8 of 9                                                                         

#6 TO : Board of Selectmen 
 FROM : David Newson 

REF : Project on Sawgrass Lane 
 
Mr. Fernald said that they had several approvals in their packet from Department 
Heads, one from the PB, who did a walk-through inspection and gave approval. In 
reference to the PB approval, he added that there had been concerns with the 
crowning of Sawgrass Lane but it has been repaved and the issue has been 
resolved. He said that they also have a letter from Mr. Newson asking for the road 
to be submitted for Town approval and requesting the $20,000 bond for the road 
be relinquished when it expires September 6, 2010. Mr. Fernald said that the bond 
was to ensure the road be built to Town standards and they now have that 
approval. 
 
Mr. Moynahan moved, second by Ms. O’Donoghue, that the Board allow the 
$20,000 be released when it expires on September 6, 2010 and put Sawgrass Lane 
in front of the voters to be taken over as a Town road at the next Town Meeting. 

    VOTE 
     4-0 
                Chair concurs 
 

Mr. Blanchette explained that what the Board has to do is what is called a laying 
out of the road, which is a formal procedure, and he wasn’t sure there would be 
enough time to get it on for November. He added that they could certainly get out 
the notices for the laying out of the road for the next meeting but he didn’t know 
if that would make it or not, as they have to have a formal notice and public 
hearing. 
 
Mr. Fernald said that they would do their best to get this done for November. 
 
Mr. Hirst asked if the road has been completely accepted and passed all of the 
road standards. 
 
Mr. Fernald said yes. 
 

7:27 PM   
#7 TO : Board of Selectmen 
 FROM : Joan Macomber Anania 
 REF : Land Purchase Request 

 
Mr. Fernald asked Mr. Blanchette to discuss this. 
 
Mr. Blanchette said that this was more than just their property. He added that he 
spoke with Norma Jean Spinney, who is very familiar with the property and she 
told him that her grandmother lived just down the road from there and there was a 
walkway along the shore but doesn’t remember how far it went. He added that, if 
it is still there, then it is not just in front of that house but extends quite a ways up 
so togive up this particular section would cut off the rest of the possible walkway, 
if it exists. 
 
Mr. Moynahan said that he saw no reason to consider selling that piece of 
property. 
 
It was the consensus of the Board not to sell this property. 
 

7:30 PM 
#8 TO : Board of Selectmen 
 FROM :CMP 
 REF : Informational 

 
This was informational. 
 



BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING 
August 26, 2010 6:30PM 

 

Page 9 of 9                                                                         

#9 TO : Board of Selectmen 
 FROM : State of Maine 
 REF : 2011 proposed Community Development Block Grant Program 

 
The Chair  said that this was also informational and confirmed that it was in the 
Board reading file. 
 
Mr. Blanchette said that it was.  
 
Mr. Fernald suggested the Board members read the file to get up-to-date on this as 
it is something the Town could utilize. 
 

#10 TO  : Board of Selectmen 
 FROM : Dept. of Economic & Community Development 
REF  : Brownfields Revolving Loan Fund Program Description 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue commented that this is a wonderful program and a lot of towns 
have taken advantage of it but she did not believe it would necessarily be 
applicable for Eliot. 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue asked if anyone had given any thought to a grant-writing group 
(committee) as there are people in Town who would be good at that. She added 
that she thought there were opportunities that they were not taking advantage of. 
 
Mr. Moynahan said that, at one time, they had grants on their Action List. 
 
The Board agreed to add grant-writing committee to the Action List. 
 

7:34 PM  
Selectmen’s Report: 

 
Mr. McPherson commented that department heads should be aware of what is 
available regarding grants and, if they need help in writing that grant, then it 
would be nice to have someone they could go to for help. 

  
Other Business as Needed 
 

There was no other business. 
 
Adjourn 
 
 There was a motion and second to adjourn the meeting at 7:30 PM.  
    VOTE 
     4-0 
                Chair concurs 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________  ______________________________ 
DATE     Roberta Place, Secretary 

 
 


